ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 14, 2001
2:20 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Drew Scal zi, Co-Chair
Representative Hugh Fate, Vice Chair
Representative Joe G een
Representative M ke Chenault
Representative Lesil MQiire
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Beth Kerttul a

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Beverly Msek, Co-Chair
Representative Mary Kapsner

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 108

"An Act relating to the accounting for and appropriation of fees
for recording and related services by the Departnent of Natural
Resources; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 108 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 108

SHORT TI TLE: DEPT NATURAL RESOURCES RECORDI NG FEES
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 05/ 01 0239 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 01 0239 (H RES, FIN

02/ 05/ 01 0240 (H FN1: (DNR)

02/ 05/ 01 0240 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 14/01 (H RES AT 2:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

NI CO BUS, Admi nistration Services Manager

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 14, 2001



Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Support Services

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

400 W I oughby Avenue, 5th Fl oor

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Cane before the commttee to speak about HB
108.

MARY ANN ROWE, President

Kachemak Bay Titl e Conpany

3691 Ben Walters Lane, Nunber 1

Honmer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified via teleconference in support of
HB 108.

SHARON YOUNG, State Recorder

State Recorder's Ofice

Di vi si on of Support Services

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1210

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3564

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke via tel econference regardi ng HB 108.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-20, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO-CHAIR DREW SCALZI called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 2:20 p.m Representati ves Fate,
MQuire, Geen, Stevens, Kerttula, and Scalzi were present at
the call to order. Representative Chenault arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 108- DEPT NATURAL RESOURCES RECORDI NG FEES

CO CHAI R SCALZI announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 108, "An Act relating to the accounting for
and appropriation of fees for recording and related services by
the Departnent of Natural Resources; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunber 0165
NICO BUS, Admnistration Services WMnager, Central Ofice,

Division of Support Services, Departnment of Natural Resources
(DNR), explained that HB 108 would not change nuch of anything

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 14, 2001



except the title of the revenue collected, which would change
t he budget. He nentioned that Sharon Young would be avail able
to answer questions regarding the program He stated that
[DNR s] recording office has been collecting revenues in excess
of its operation for a nunber of years, with a budget of $2.4
mllion and a collection of over $4 mllion. M. Bus clarified
that [HB 108] would not change any of the fee structures or have
any inpact on the projected revenues.

MR BUS told the House Resources Standing Conmttee that [DNR]
is asking for a change from general fund program receipts to
recei pts of supported services, so that, in terns of the budget,

the program could stand on its own. He pointed out that
al though the custoners pay for the services, often, when budget
deliberations are done [by DNR] internally, [the State

Recorder's Ofice] has to conpete with other division. M. Bus
mentioned being told by the [Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget],
after the passage of HB 418 | ast year, that the State Recorder's
Ofice would qualify for "this type of classification.”

MR, BUS stated that the House Resources Standing Conmttee coul d
get an understanding of why HB 108 was up before them by | ooking
at the fiscal note. He told the commttee that the increase in
the cost of postage on 200,000 docunents has an inpact on the
budget, adding that it is hard to conpete for the general fund

resour ces. M. Bus said HB 108 would isolate the recorder's
office and would identify the receipts collected and conpare
them to the expenditures. He nentioned a [House Finance

Comm ttee] subconmttee on DNR that pointed out that there are
expenditures for the recorder's office that are paid for in
ot her state agencies, such as the Departnent of Adm nistration

whi ch pays for nost of the office |eases. M. Bus suggested
[the recorder's office] could start to pick up those types of
costs and show its revenue expenditure nore easily [if HB 108
passed], so that the users of the recorder's office could see
that their fees are used appropriately and that the [recorder's
of fice] would not nmake a huge profit.

Number 0493

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE nentioned an adage about expanding in
order to fill a gap. She asked for confirmation that the
appropriations and collections were $2.4 nmillion and $4 mllion,
respectively, and suggested that a nodest fee reduction could be
i ncorporated, given the | arge gap between those two figures.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 14, 2001



MR. BUS responded that the fee structure has been studied, but
has not been changed significantly since 1991; he added that the
anount of revenue fluctuates with the volune of transactions
bei ng processed. He said [the recorder's office] fees are very

reasonabl e conpared to those of other states. M. Bus noted
that HB 108 would allow [the recorder's] office to show nore of
its true cost, adding, "The $2.4 [mllion] is only for the

anount of noney that we are spending in our recorder's office in
the Departnent of Natural Resources.”

MR. BUS reiterated that the Departnent of Adm nistration spends
about $300,000 to pay for [the recorder's office's] |eases. He

cited sonme exanples of other expenses: a lease cost in the
court system and a fee for storing old records at Archives [and
Record Managenent Services ("Archives")]. He expl ained that,

currently, [the recorder's office] does not have the noney in
its DNR budget to pay those fees, but if the fee could be
changed [through the passage of HB 108], [the recorder's office]
could pay the other agencies and denonstrate that its fees are
reasonable and that they conme close to the ampunt of its
expendi t ures.

Nunber 0672

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE rephrased her question and asked M. Bus
if it is hisintent to |lower the fee.

MR. BUS answered no. He added that the fees would stay the sane
and a yearly report would show how close the revenue cones to
t he expenditures.

Nunber 0704

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked M. Bus to give the commttee an
idea of what the total cost to DNR would be when fees are
brought in that are "paid by other departnments, Ilike the
Departnent of Adm nistration.”

MR. BUS reiterated that DNR s recorder's office budget is $2.4

mllion. He listed sonme of the nmjor expenses paid by the
Departnent of Administration as follows: approximtely $320, 000
for |lease <costs, <costs for ~central payrol | and central

archiving; and separate nmainframe and networks conputer costs
totaling $100,000. He added that the total expenditures conme to
about $3 nmillion, based solely on the mmjor expenses he is
currently aware of; however, upon closer scrutiny, nore costs
could be added to the Ilist.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 14, 2001



MR. BUS explained that the recorder's office used to be part of
the court system therefore there are nmany old records of deeds
and trusts that are in binders that need to be filnmed and sent
to Archives. He added, "Archives charges for [the] cost of
archi vi ng. This is permanent archiving, so we haven't really
been charged for this, but, again, that would kind of show the
custoners that the ... revenue's paying for the cost, and it
comes cl ose."

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked M. Bus to confirm that the goal
[of the recorder's office] is to get all of the approxinmately $3
mllion in legitinmte expenses under DNR He nentioned the
approximately $1 mllion in excess charges that would not be
used and asked if those funds would end up in the general fund.

MR. BUS answered that those funds go to the unrestricted general
fund and are avail able for appropriation.

Nunmber 0902

MARY ANN ROWE, President, Kachemak Bay Title Conpany, testified
via teleconference in support of HB 108. She stated the
i mportance of mcrofilmng old records that currently remain in
their original form She said not being able to protect the
records by nmaking copies of them for Archives would have serious
effects in the future on | andowners. M. Rowe stated her belief
that it would be a good thing for the recorder's office to be
able to utilize its funds/receipts.

Nunmber 0995

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked M. Bus, if HB 108 were passed with
its fiscal note, whether he would anticipate that the budget
would rise above the $4 mllion as additional requests were
recei ved.

Number 1055

MR. BUS answered that the workload fluctuates, and currently,
because [the recorder's office] has to conpete for the general
fund, it is at a standstill, with no ability to respond to its
wor k| oad. The proposed funding would give [the recorder's
office] nore freedom to ask for nore noney to neet the cost of
t he wor kl oad.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 14, 2001



MR BUS, in response to a previous comrent by Representative
Stevens, said, "This excludes our capital request."” He
explained that there are 14 offices around the state, and nuch
of the equipnment used in archiving has been handed down fromthe
court systemand is antiquated. He nentioned an idea to provide
a library where people could access records and said that [the
recorder's office] would need [new] equipnent to be able to
realize that idea. He said the current capital request is for
about $250, 000.

Number 1155

REPRESENTATI VE CGREEN asked M. Bus, if there were a
"rash"” of increases in requests, because of the gas
pi peline, for exanple, whether [the recorder's office]
woul d "rise" or fluctuate with those requests.

MR. BUS answered that that was the intent of [the recorder's
of fice]. He made note of the increased workload related to the
gas pipeline activity, saying that if the prime rate dropped,
people would start refinancing, which would increase the
workload in [the recorder's office]. He stated that he would
like to call on Sharon Young to discuss that issue.

Nunmber 1218

SHARON  YOUNG, State Recor der, State Recorder's Ofice
(Anchorage), Division of Support Services, Departnent of Natura
Resources (DNR), testified via teleconference to answer
guesti ons. She comented that the workload [in the recorder's
office] is cyclical, and fluctuates for many reasons, including
econom c ones. For exanple, she stated that last nonth there
was a 10, 000-docunent increase because of the NBA [ National Bank
of Al aska]-Wlls Fargo transactions being recorded. Ms. Young
said those types of things happen sporadically, and the current
fee structure of [the recorder's office] is such that the
revenues are sufficient to cover all costs. She added that [the
recorder's office] does not anticipate excessive activity as a
result of the gas pipeline; it would be conparable to the oil
pi pel i ne. She said it would affect a nunber of recording
districts and offices. Ms. Young stated the opinion of [the
recorder's office] that the funding is sufficient to handle
that, and added that with the "ups and downs" in [the recorder's
office] activity, "it would be very nice to have the ability to
work with those [funds] and have a nore stable ability to rely
on that."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 14, 2001



Nunber 1331

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked M. Bus what processes he had in place
to ensure the efficiency of the change in accounting centers and
to guarantee that the approximately $1.5 mllion in excess of
expenditures would not be mxed with other funds within the
departnment, now that it was out of "the general fund scrutiny.”
He specified that he wanted to know how M. Bus would be able to
show the legislators involved in "m ssions and neasures" where
t hat noney went. He said if the nobney were interdepartnental
it apparently wuld not "lapse" into the general fund
Representative Fate stated that [the recorder's office] would
have an excess [of noney], and said if it built up over the
years, [the recorder's office] may expect to spend it on things
that are not necessary, or nmay "be |looking at other areas,
wi thin the departnent of DNR "

Nunber 1449
MR. BUS responded with the foll ow ng:

First of all, the appropriation for the recorder's
office is I[imted by the appropriation that you make.
So, even today, the receipts that we collect are
limted in expenditures by the appropriation we have.
The appropriation for the recorder's office currently
is only $2.4 nmillion dollars. If you choose to
increase that, we would have to cone to you, whether
it's called "program receipts" or "receipts for the
services."

The accounting and the auditing - for right now the
recorder's office [has a] separate budget which
(indisc.) conplete, separate appropriation in the
departnment. And they don't mx with [the D vision of]
Ol & Gas and all these other progranms, and so there
is, clearly, separate accounting. And we are limted
to the anount that is appropriated. $2.4 mllion only
funds 11 of our 14 recorder's offices; there are 3 of
our recorder's offices that we are not budgeting for
dealing with, because they are still wunder the court
system The court has asked us repeatedly if we are
ready and willing to take it over, and we are. But we

are, again, limted by our budget.
And so ... we have tw different branches of
governnment that are doing the service. ... Getting

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 14, 2001



back to your issue of mssions and neasures: it's a
probl em for us, because when a custoner comes to our
court office where they want to do a recording, and
that court clerk is busy with a court case, then they
just put the recording aside and they don't deal wth
it. It mght be a couple of days.

And so, what Sharon [Young] would Ilike - and [Ms.
Young] can comment a little nmore - is that ful

control of all the responsibilities in the recording
t hroughout the state. And right now, we handle the
recording for 11 of the recording offices, and 3 are
dealt with through the court system And so, it's a
little awkward, and this, again, would be an avenue
where we could say, through the court, "Hey, those 3
offices - let us know what it would take, and then
we'll cone back to you and ... we'll present it to you
as a [policynmaker], and say, "Are you willing to fund
those through these receipt support services? Do it

in these offices.” That's another advantage that's
currently -- we are just absolutely limted. W said,
"The only thing we will do is have the current 11,

because that 2.4 is all we can do."
Number 1603

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked for clarification regarding the
recei pts and the general fund.

MR. BUS replied that the receipts go into the general fund and
then $2. 4[mllion] of that is appropriated.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE inquired whether this change in accounting
woul d be nore efficient.

MR. BUS responded that it would not change anything for the
custoner; it would just change the nane of the receipt. He
stated that the <change would take [the recorder's office]
outside of general fund conpetition, within the departnent and
W thin state governnent, because it would isolate those receipts

just for the recorder's office. He added, "If you say, ' Now,
recorders, after a year it's only $2.5[million]," if we collect
$4 mllion, we still give $1.5 mllion dollars to the treasury."
Nunmber 1661

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 14, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA clarified that like the fish and gane
fund, it's all general fund noney and it's up to the |egislature
whether or not it gets used and for what purpose. She said
tal king about individual funds in it is like putting up an
i mgi nary picket fence, which can help show within departnents
what expenses are and how nuch noney was nade.

Nunmber 1699
CO- CHAI R SCALZI comrent ed:

It's [an] excellent idea/concept if we pay attention
to it. If we don't pay attention to it, then what
Representative Kerttula said is absolutely true.

Nunmber 1758

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS made a notion to nove HB 108 out of
commttee wth individual recomendations and the attached
fiscal note. There being no objection, HB 108 noved from the
House Resources Standing Commttee.

[The LIO turned off the recording twice before the actual
adj ournment, during which tinme the commttee discussed upcom ng
nmeet i ngs. |

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:43 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 14, 2001



